
 London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

Wormwood Scrubs 
Charitable Trust Committee 

 

Agenda 
 

Monday 20 March 2017 
7.00 pm 

Woodlane Community Centre, 78 White City Close, W12 7DZ 
 

MEMBERSHIP 
 

Administration: Opposition Co-optees 

Councillor Elaine Chumnery 
Councillor Wesley Harcourt 
(Chair) 
 

Councillor Joe Carlebach 
 

Miriam Shea 
Stephan Waley-Cohen 
 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: Amrita Gill 

Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 020 8753 2094 
 E-mail: amrita.gill@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
Reports on the open agenda are available on the Council’s website: 
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend. A loop system for hearing impairment 
is provided, along with disabled access to the building. 
 
 

Date Issued: 
 

21 March 2017 
 

 
 

http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy/Committee_reports_minutes_and_agendas/Current_Committees/Homepage.asp
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy


London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust 
Committee 

Agenda 
 

20 March 2017 
 
 
Item  Pages 

1.   MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING  1 - 4 

 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 6 December 2016 
 

 

2.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 If a Councillor has any prejudicial or personal interest in a particular item 
they should declare the existence and nature of the interest at the 
commencement of the consideration of that item or as soon as it 
becomes apparent. 
 
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in 
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a prejudicial interest may 
also make representations, give evidence or answer questions about 
the matter. The Councillor must then withdraw immediately from the 
meeting before the matter is discussed and any vote taken unless a 
dispensation has been obtained from the Standards Committee. 
 
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance, then 
the Councillor with a prejudicial interest should withdraw from the 
meeting whilst the matter is under consideration unless the disability has 
been removed by the Standards Committee. 
 

 

4.   MANAGERS REPORT  5 - 16 

 The Committee is asked to approve the proposed budget for 2017/18. 
 

 

5.   DATE OF NEXT MEETING   

 The next meeting is scheduled for 21 June 2017  
 



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Wormwood Scrubs 
Charitable Trust 

Committee 
Minutes   

 
6 December 2016 

 

 
PRESENT 
 
Committee members: Councillors Joe Carlebach, Wesley Harcourt (Chair), and 
Elaine Chumnery 
 
Co-opted members: Miriam Shea 
 
Officers: Mark Jones (Director for Finance and Resources), Dave Page (Director for 
Safer Neighbourhoods), and David Abbott (Governance) 
 
 
1. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 

RESOLVED 
The minutes of the meeting held on 20 September 2016 were approved and 
signed by the Chair. 

 
 
2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
2.1 Apologies were received from Stephen Waley-Cohen. 
 
 
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
3.1 Councillor Wesley Harcourt declared a non-pecuniary interest as a member of 

the OPDC planning committee and as Hammersmith and Fulham Council’s 
Cabinet Member for Environment and Transport. 

 
 
4. MANAGERS’ REPORT 
 

HS2 Bill 
4.1 Dave Page noted that royal assent of the HS2 bill was imminent and following 

that officers would meet with HS2 to progress work on the wetland mitigation 
and Stamford Brook sewer project. 

 
4.2 Miriam Shea asked if the funds from HS2 would come through the Trust or the 

Council. Mark Jones responded that the funds would come through the 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

Council but would be under the control of this committee and would be fully 
reported in the Trust’s accounts. 

 
OPDC Wormwood Scrubs Survey Questionnaire – Aug-Sept 2016 

4.3 Dave Page reported that officers were expecting feedback from the survey by 
the end of the year. Councillor Elaine Chumnery requested that a 
representative from OPDC presented the results of the survey at the next 
meeting on 20 March 2017. 

 
Filming and Events Update 

4.4 Dave Page noted that four event proposals had been received; a live music 
event, a four weekend secret cinema event, a reggae festival, and a winter 
event. More detail would be provided about the winter event at a future 
meeting. Dave Page also noted that an improved version of the website was 
available to view and officers were in the process of obtaining publicity photos 
from OPDC. Councillor Joe Carlebach commented that there was a donate 
button on the site but not an explanation of why people should use it. Officers 
said some explanatory text would be added for the final version. 

 
4.5 Councillor Elaine Chumnery asked if there was an events plan that could be 

made available on the website to make the offer clear for event organisers. 
Officers said this could be added. 

 
Community Safety Update 

4.6 Dave Page noted that a fibre link to the Parks Police office to the CCTV room 
had been installed to allow monitoring of the cameras. 

 
4.7 The Chair asked what progress had been made replacing the barrier. Dave 

Page said he would follow-up on this issue and get new costs. 
 

ACTION: Dave Page 
 

Grounds Maintenance and Site Management Update 
4.8 Miriam Shea asked for clarification on 8.2 of the report. Dave Page said 

officers had asked Idverde to fill the absent posts from other parts of the 
contract. Miriam Shea noted that there was still a lot of litter in places, 
particularly at the entrance to Scrubs Lane, in the hospital car park, and in the 
new play area on Braybrook Street. 

 
Introduction of Cycle Quietway between East Acton and Kensington  

4.9 Dave Page presented the new proposal, including amendments made 
following discussion at the last meeting. Miriam Shea said the new route was 
much improved but asked that officers looked at adding a system to slow bike 
traffic along Scrubs Lane where the bike path crossed the pedestrian 
footpath. 

 
4.10 Councillor Elaine Chumnery said it would be useful to see usage figures once 

the route was in place. 
 

Page 2



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

4.11 Councillor Wesley Harcourt asked that electrical outlets were put in along with 
the ducting to put an end to events organisers having to use generators that 
provoked noise complaints. 

 
RESOLVED 
The Committee approved the cycle quietway, with the additions noted above. 

 
Financial Forecast 2016/17 

4.12 Mark Jones reported that the latest financial forecast was for a £78,000 loss. 
That included £10,000 for upgrading parking meters to allow pay by phone, 
which based on similar upgrades around the borough could lead to increased 
revenues.  

 
4.13 Councillor Joe Carlebach asked if it would be possible to negotiate an early 

payment from UKPN to cover some of the losses in this financial year, but 
without damaging the Trust’s negotiating position. Dave Page said he would 
speak to colleagues in Property Services. 

ACTION: Dave Page 
 
4.14 Councillor Joe Carlebach asked officers to look at the feasibility of obtaining a 

good bid writer to make bids to other charitable foundations to support the 
Trust’s finances going forward. 

ACTION: Mark Jones 
 
4.15 Councillor Elaine Chumnery noted that the Committee had previously 

considered employing someone on a part-time basis to manage the website 
and write bids. Officers said hiring a manager would happen when the funding 
from HS2 came through. 

 
Appointment of Auditors 

4.16 Mark Jones noted that the Trust must appoint an auditor for its 2016/17 
accounts. KPMG were recommended to maintain consistency with the 
Council’s arrangements, which made the audit of the Trust’s accounts easier. 

 
4.17 Councillor Joe Carlebach asked that officers seek a discount on KMPG’s fee 

due to the Trust’s charitable status. 
 

RESOLVED 
The Committee postponed approval until the results of the request for a 
discount were known. 

 
 
5. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
5.1 The next meeting was scheduled for 20 March 2017. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 3



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

 
Meeting started: 7.00pm 
Meeting ended: 7.50pm 

Chair …………………………………… 
 
 
Contact Officer: David Abbott 

Governance and Scrutiny 
Tel: 020 8753 2063 
Email: david.abbott@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 

Page 4

mailto:david.abbott@lbhf.gov.uk


 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

WORMWOOD SCRUBS CHARITABLE 
TRUST COMMITTEE 

 
20 March 2017 

 

 

 

MANAGERS REPORT 
 

Report of the Director for Safer Neighbourhoods and the Director for Finance 
and Resources, Environmental Services 
 

Open Report 
 

Classification: For Decision and for noting 

Key Decision: No 
 

Wards Affected: College Park and Old Oak 
 

Accountable Executive Director: David Page Director for Safer Neighbourhoods 
 

Report Author:  
Mark Jones, Director for Finance and Resources 
David Page, Director for Safer Neighbourhoods 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8753 6700 
mark.jones@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

 
 
1. Executive Summary and Decisions Sought 
 
1.1 The Committee is asked to approve: 

 

 The proposed budget for 2017/18 
 
and to note all other matters in this report.  
 

2.  HS2 Bill - Proposed Wetland Mitigation Legal Agreement and  
Re-Routing Stamford Brook Sewer Legal Agreement 

 
2.1. LBHF officers secured assurances from HS2 regarding the proposed wetland 

mitigation proposals on Wormwood Scrubs and the re-routing of Stamford 
Brooks Sewer through the northern edge of the Scrubs.  

 
2.2. The High Speed Two (London – West Midlands) Act 2017 was given the 

Royal Assent on 23rd February. The Act came into force at the beginning of 
that day and will be published on www.legislation.gov.  
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4

mailto:mark.jones@lbhf.gov.uk
http://www.legislation.gov/


2.3. Officers will be meeting with HS2 in March to develop both projects and will 
update the Trust on any progress.   

 
 Committee to Note 
 
3. HS2 Proposed Ground Investigations   
 
3.1. HS2 Ltd are due to start ground investigations in the Old Oak Common station 

area in March. The investigations would primarily be undertaken in the Great 
Western railway depot and Heathrow Express depot area.  
 

3.2. To get a greater spread of ground water monitoring and boreholes in the area 
HS2 require access to Wormwood Scrubs to undertake some Ground 
investigations. These would include 8 Cone Penetration Tests (CPT’s), going 
into maximum depth of 30m with 2 locations also having rotary borehole depth 
to approximately 70m.  The CPT’s would be bored and filled in on the same 
day. The two boreholes would take approximately a week each and upon 
completion they would be covered with a flush cap that can be used for 
monitoring throughout the duration of the station project. The holes would be 
designed as ‘permanent’ as HS2 Ltd require them to remain for longer than 6 
months. However, if the council requested for them to be filled in after the civil 
work at OOC are completed this is a possibility. Although the council may also 
wish to keep them for their own monitoring purposes.  
 

3.3. HS2 has advised the locations are flexible and the approximated locations 
had been checked with their ecology expert. The Japanese knotweed and 
football pitches would be avoided. 

 
4. OPDC Wormwood Scrubs Survey Questionnaire, Aug- Sept 2016  

 
4.1. The OPDC undertook survey work/ consultation from 17 August to 7 

September 2016 which aimed to capture existing use of the Wormwood 
Scrubs.  
  

4.2. OPDC held an all-day drop in event at the Old Oak Community Centre on 
Wednesday 17 August. OPDC also carried out surveys involving knocking on 
doors asking people to fill out surveys with them.  The areas that were 
covered included: 

 College Place 

 North Kensington 

 Eynham Road and surrounds 

 Old Oak Estate 

 Harlesden (south of the town centre) 

 Residential areas in OPDC area 
 
4.4     As a consequence of the Mayoral Review of the OPDC and delay in  

appointing a chair of the OPDC Board, officers have not yet published a report 
on the outcome of Wormwood Scrubs Survey. They plan to publish the survey 
results alongside the next draft OPDC Local Plan, but this decision would be 
subject to the approval of the new chair and OPDC Board. 

Page 6



Committee to Note 
 

5. Filming and Events Update – Jem Kale 
 
5.1 Secret Cinema - The organisers have proposed a two or four week 
 experiential screening event in August 2017- Wednesday to Sunday. It is a 
 low risk mass participation event. Proposed daily capacity is up to 5,000. The 
 event content includes experiencing a selected film, screening, food and 
 beverage. This proposal requires premises licence and may need a temporary 
 planning consent. Negotiation is at the final stage. The committee will be 
 updated in a couple of weeks. 
 
5.2 Winter Event update - The organiser has been preparing a defined proposal. 
 An update will be available in early 2017 

 
Committee to Note 
 

6.  Community Safety Update – Mike Rumble 

6.1  The number of rough sleepers found on Wormwood Scrubs has considerably 
reduced during the winter months and the recent cutback of undergrowth will 
assist in preventing their return.  
 

6.2 One Spanish national was arrested during a joint immigration patrol and has 
been repatriated. 
 

6.3 A number of Fixed Penalty tickets were issued mainly for dog related offences 
including professional dog walkers with excessive numbers of dogs.  
 

6.4 Parks Police assisted a BBC crew with the first authorised drone filming in the 
Borough for the BBC ‘Hospital’ documentary series. 
 

6.5 The large number of film unit bases, circus’s and ‘Winter Wonderland’ 
occupying the ‘Redgra’ has helped in deterring any travellers from entering 
onto the Scrubs, although the barrier has been operating intermittently. 
 

6.6 A number of thefts from unattended vehicles in the Hospital Car Park were 
brought to our attention and high visibility patrols helped in deterring the 
offenders.  

 

Month Incidents  Crimes Patrols 

Quarter 3 

October 2016 6 0 31 

November 2016 6 0 23 

December 2016 3 0 25 

Quarter 4 

January 2017 7 0 41 

February 2017 1 0 36 

 
 

Page 7



Committee to Note 
 

7.  Grounds Maintenance and site management update – Ian Ross 

7.1 This quarters work has focussed on litter removal; the Scrubs attracts a 
significant volume of litter, which is regularly caught up in the copses.  Officers 
have been working with Idverde to try to manage this on a proactive rather 
than reactive basis. 

7.2 Work was undertaken in mid-February to start the removal of the large 
encampments to the north of the site that are being used by homeless people.  
The initial work was to provide safe access to these areas and the next phase 
will be to dismantle the structures and remove the associated rubbish/debris. 

7.3 Officers were recently made aware by the Friends of Wormwood Scrubs of a 
gorilla gardening group Pannage.eu.  There website describes them as: 

“Pannage.eu is an informal lobbying initiative run by volunteers that helps local 
British pig farmers throughout United Kingdom and Northern Ireland plan & 
plant huge fruit & nut orchards on Common Land owned by the local Parish, 
Council, Forestry Commission or National Trust. Its main aim is the eventual 
use of such commons based plantations for pannage purposes (letting pigs 
forage on common land). However, its indirect result also would enable the 
right for local people to use the commons for pasture, piscary & fruit forage as 
well (as larger food quantities on one hand and pig slurry/manure on the other, 
would boost biodiversity available).” 

One of the sites they have targeted in Wormwood Scrubs, and their website 
makes the following recommendations: 

Hammersmith & Fulham council need to protect the park (and its nature 
reserves) better by: 

1. Enclosing it in a user friendly (but high) metal fence with gates at each end 
to deter vandals. The gates don’t have to be closed during the night, but it 
would deter anyone entering the park unofficially 

2. Evicting homeless camps on its northern fringes of British Railway land 

3. Picking rubbish more often including getting rid of fly tipping refuse 

4. Burying ex building material heaps that have been accumulating along 
Scrubs Lane for the last 10+ years with tonnes of compost dirt from the 
countryside 

5. Adding more CCTVs on each end of the two main busy roads (Scrubs 
Lane/Wood Lane & Old Oak Common Lane/ Old Wolfstan 
Street/Braybrook Street – Corner). This way with fences and gates, re-
enforcing access points to limit the park to local residence/commoners and 
its end users, rather than undocumented people 

Page 8



6. Extending & Re-instating Ancient Common land rights like Foraging, 
Estovers, Pannage and Pasture, as a way to improve both biodiversity & 
branding image. Local residential cul de sacs, hamlets & mews are 
currently adjoining industrial land depleted of quality air and wildlife. This 
creates bad health & fewer opportunities for local children to develop an 
interest for General Sciences. Re-instating these traditions back into Old 
Oak Common connects its nearby residence to its romantic past! In the 
urban setting however, the commons are actually parks with some bylaws 
giving them nominal common status, but are neither managed as such, nor 
remain connected to agricultural occupations of the community! 

The Friends of Wormwood Scrubs, who the group originally contacted, have 
written a strongly worded letter stating they are working with the Charitable 
Trust/Council developing plans for the site and asking Pannage.eu to desist in 
their activities. 

Committee to Note 
 

8. Sourcing a Bid Writer 

At the last meeting of WSCT it was requested that officers investigate sourcing 
a bid-writer to help us make bids to charitable foundations. Mark Jones met 
with Lucy Ashdown who is the funding and partnerships development officer in 
RBKC (there is not such a role any longer in LBHF).  The key points that came 
out of that were: 

 We need a pipeline of proposed projects 

 Start small 

 Consider trusts and foundations, but also crowd-source funding and 
corporate sponsorship 

 The ratio of spend on fundraising to the amount raised is typically 1:4 
 
Lucy Ashdown said that to recruit a bid writer we could either approach a 
company (she recommended the International Fundraising Consultancy) or 
seek an individual, perhaps through existing contacts of WSCT Committee 
members or through other council departments. 
 
Mark Jones spoke with Bill King, UK Director of the International Fundraising 
Consultancy, who made the following points: 

 The starting point is to identify specific projects offering clear benefits 
to people. 

 You need more than a bid-writer, a good individual should be offering 
some project management as well. 

 The right trusts need to be identified and researched, shortlisting about 
25, and prioritising them. 

 Between 10% and 25% of applications should be successful. 
 
Bill King thought that initially we should assume about 3 to 4 days to research 
trusts, then say ten days of time to make some bids.  A typical daily rate would 

Page 9



be about £600.  So 14 days of work would cost £8,400.  Using Lucy’s ratio we 
might raise about £34k from that.   
 
Committee to Note 
 

9. Financial Forecast 2016/17 

9.1. The latest financial forecast for Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust (“the 
Trust”) for 2016/17 is summarised below and is detailed in Annexe A.  

 
9.2. Financial transactions for the financial year to date are set out in Annexe B. 
 
9.3. The budget for 2016/17 was set with an anticipated £55,103 deficit to be 

drawn down from the Trust’s reserves. The forecast for 2016/17 is for a deficit 
is £50,000, which is £5,103 better than budget.   

 

 
9.4. The Trust’s opening cash balance for 2016/17 is £275,570. The latest forecast 

anticipates a drawdown of £50,000 (18% of the current cash balance), which 
would give a cash balance of £225,570 to carry forward to 2017/18.  This is 
£5,103 better than the original forecast drawdown on reserves. 

 
9.5. Year to date parking income is slightly lower than last year, with a reduction of 

5% observed in 2016/17.  
 

9.6. The other income line includes a forecast of £88,612 from filming and events 
representing an increase of 44% compared with 2015/16 income for these 
activities.  

 
9.7. Forecast inflation on the Quadron grounds maintenance contract has been 

agreed and is 0.56% for 2016/17. The charge for the full year was processed 
in Quarter 2. 
 

9.8. Included in the forecast this month is £4,900 to survey and produce details of 
the car park as part of a borough wide pay and display upgrade programme 
and the offering of phone parking and credit card options. The existing pay 
and display ticket machines in the car park are almost 20 years old, can only 

Activity
Outturn 

2015/16

Budget 

2016/17

Forecast 

2016/17
Variance

Movement 

Between 

Years

Comments
Last 

Reported
Movement

Pay and Display Parking Meters

(303,538) (292,489) (287,225) 5,264 -5%

Parking income is £16k less when compared 

to income received in the prior period. (294,899) 7,673

Hammersmith Hospital Car Park Licence
(294,070) (314,877) (316,505) (1,628) 8%

Contracted lease payments increased by 2% 

in Q4 2016/17. (314,906) (1,599)

Other income from activities for generating 

funds (80,964) (78,919) (90,112) (11,193) 11%

Filming income for February and March is 

forecast at an additional £25K. (63,254) (26,858)

Total Income and endowments (678,572) (686,285) (693,842) (7,557) 2% (673,059) (20,784)

Grounds Maintenance 684,032 674,572 685,893 11,320 0% Inflation 2016/17 is 0.56% 687,756 (1,863)

Contribution to Linford Christie Stadium
32,405 31,500 32,312 812 0%

Includes an element of governance costs 

estimated using 2015/16 figures. 32,405 (93)

Other Expenditure

21,335 35,315 25,637 (9,678) 20%

Estimated cost of car park survey (tbc if 

carried out), inspection fees and non-routine 

grounds maintenance costs. 31,335 (5,698)

Total Expenditure 737,772 741,388 743,842 2,454 1% 751,495 (7,653)

Net (income)/expenditure 59,199 55,103 50,000 (5,103) -16% 78,437 (28,437)

Page 10



accept coin payments and often break down. An upgrade of the ticket 
machines would include the introduction of phone payment parking service 
and the tendering for new ticket machines to replace the old outdated 
machines. When the machines are upgraded this would be at a cost of £1,000 
per machine and there would be a maximum of four machines. However, any 
such upgrade will not now be delivered until 2017/18, so the forecast has 
been reduced to reflect the delay. 

 
9.9. The movement between the expenditure lines reflects new accounting 

arrangements in line with Financial Reporting Standards. This requires that 
the forecast governance costs of £18,461 are apportioned over the 
expenditure lines. 

 
9.10. Two capital projects have been completed this financial year as part the 

Council’s capital programme, which means that the costs are met by the 
Council and do not fall to the Trust. These are; 

 

 The supply and installation of a play area for young children at a 
forecast cost of £51,721. 

 The supply and installation of a pull up gym behind Linford Christie 
Stadium at a forecast cost of £49,135.  

 
Committee to Note 

 
10. Financial Budget 2017/18 

10.1. The proposed budget for Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust (“the Trust”) for 
2017/18 is summarised below along with details of movements and 
assumptions. 

Income and Expenditure 
 

Activity 
Outturn 
2015/16 

Forecast 
2016/17 

Proposed 
Budget 
2017/18 

Forecast 
2018/19 

Forecast 
2019/20 

Pay and Display Parking Meters (303,538) (287,225) (287,225) (287,225) (287,225) 

Hammersmith Hospital Car Park Licence (294,070) (316,505) (322,896) (329,290) (331,595) 

Other income from activities for generating funds (80,964) (90,112) (90,112) (90,112) (90,112) 

Total Incoming Resources from Generated 
Funds (678,572) (693,842) (700,234) (706,627) (708,932) 

Grounds Maintenance 684,032 685,893 699,473 713,323 727,447 

Contribution to Linford Christie Stadium 32,405 32,312 32,312 32,312 32,312 

Other Expenditure 21,335 25,637 25,637 25,637 25,637 

Total Resources Expended 737,772 743,842 757,423 771,272 785,396 

Net Incoming Resources 59,199 50,000 57,189 64,645 76,464 

 

 

 

Page 11



 

Forecast Changes 
 

Activity Adjustments 
Proposed 

Budget 
2017/18 

Forecast 
2018/19 

Forecast 
2019/20 

Notes 

Pay and Display Parking 
Meters 

Brought forward (287,225) (287,225) (287,225)   

 
0 

 
    

Carried forward (287,225) (287,225) (287,225)   

Hammersmith Hospital Car 
Park Licence 

Brought forward (316,505) (322,896) (329,290)   

RPI increase (6,391) (6,393) (2,305) 1 

Carried forward (322,896) (329,290) (331,595)   

Other income from activities 
for generating funds 

Brought forward (90,112) (90,112) (90,112)   

New events 
  

  2 

Carried forward (90,112) (90,112) (90,112)   

Grounds Maintenance 

Brought forward 685,893 699,473 713,323   

Inflation on contract 13,581 13,850 14,124 3 

Carried forward 699,473 713,323 727,447   

Contribution to Linford 
Christie Stadium 

Brought forward 32,312 32,312 32,312 4 

Carried forward 32,312 32,312 32,312   

Other Expenditure 

Brought forward 25,637 25,637 25,637   
Cost of generating new 
income  

  
  5 

Carried forward 25,637 25,637 25,637   

 

Notes         
1. Agreed inflationary increase of 2% from Q4 2016/17 to be carried forward for Q1-Q3 2017/18. Contracted 
increase for Q4 2017/18 based on RPI estimated at 1.98%. 
2.  The events team are exploring the possibility of an outdoor film festival but nothing certain at present. All other 
additional activity is expected to continue in future years. 

3.   1.98% assumed based on December 2016 RPI. 
4.   Every effort is being made to keep expenditure at a minimum. The stadium has some pressures on maintenance 
as there are areas in need of updating and equipment to be purchased which cannot be funded by capital or S106 
funds. 
5.  Not yet agreed with the Council and exact figure will depend on income received by WSCT, and on cost of work 
done by Council officers. 

 

10.2. We have made quite cautious assumptions about the likely income from 
events in 2017/18.  Securing a  large event is not assumed, but Council 
officers are working on possibilities as detailed elsewhere.   

10.3. The forecast balance sheet position for 2016/17 to 2019/20 for Wormwood 
Scrubs Charitable Trust (“the Trust”) is summarised below. 

 

 

 

Page 12



 

Balance Sheet at end of Year 

  

Forecast 
2016/17 

Proposed 
Budget 
2017/18 

Forecast 
2018/19 

Forecast 
2019/20 

Tangible Assets   5,000,001 5,000,001 5,000,001 5,000,001 

Cash at bank   225,570 168,381 103,736 27,272 

Creditors   (20,992) (20,992) (20,992) (20,992) 

Debtors 
 

40 40 40 40 

Net Assets   
 

5,204,619  
 

5,147,430  
 

5,082,785  
 

5,006,321  

Unrestricted Income Funds   5,204,619 5,147,430 5,082,785 5,006,321 

Total Charity Funds   
 

5,204,619  
 

5,147,430  
 

5,082,785  
 

5,006,321  

 
10.4. Cash reserves continue to be run down under current assumptions and would 

last until 2019/20.  That may change depending how the new HS2 funding is 
used, if a significant event can be secured, and on the resolution of the 
discussions with UKPN.  

Committee to Approve 

11. UKPN 

13.1 UKPN and the Council are still in negotiations and are in the process of 
agreeing heads of terms for a 7 year lease to UKPN which is to regularise 
their occupation of the shaft site and to create a new underground easement 
to connect to the existing shaft to enable connection for the Imperial College 
Development in White City.   

 
Committee to Note 

12. Legal Comments 

12.1. There are no legal comments to be made on the contents of this report.  
Comments completed by David Walker, Principal Solicitor, Legal Services. 

 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 

 
None. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



ANNEXE A 
 

Current Financial Forecast 
Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust

Statement of Financial Activities for Year ended 31 March 2017

Income and Expenditure
2016/17

Forecast
2015/16

£ £

Income and endowments from:

Donations and legacies

Income from Charitable activities:

     Pay and Display Parking Meters (287,225) (303,538)

     Hammersmith Hospital Car Park Licence (316,505) (294,070)

Other trading activities (88,612) (79,261)

Income from Investments (1,500) (1,704)

Other Income 0 0

Total Income and endowments (693,842) (678,572)

Expenditure on:

Raising funds 0 0

Charitable activities:

     Costs of generating Parking Income 4,900 0

     Contribution to Linford Christie Stadium 32,312 32,405

     Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs 16,360 20,729

     Routine Grounds Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs 685,893 684,032

Other expenditure 4,377 606

Total Expenditure 743,842 737,772

Net gains/(losses) on investments

Net (income)/expenditure 50,000 59,199

Reconciliation of Funds

Total funds brought forward (5,254,619) (5,313,818)

Total funds carried forward (5,204,619) (5,254,619)  
 

Page 14



ANNEXE B 
 

Transactions to Date 
 

Activity Comments Amount 
Routine Grounds Maintenance of Wormwood 
Scrubs WSCT - Fixed Ground Maintenance 2016/17 668,655 

Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs Works on Redgra 3,746 

Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs Fencing works 3,711 

Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs Advanced Tree Services Limited 400 

Other expenditure Audiolink Limited 106 

Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs Fencing works 380 

Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs Fencing works 270 

Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs Fencing works 298 

Contribution to Linford Christie Stadium WSCT Contributions to LCS 31,500 

Other expenditure New switch on barrier 525 

Other expenditure Inspection Fees 3,244 

Other expenditure WSCT e-mail address 60 

Other trading activities April 2016 Filming Recharges to Wormwood Scrubs (563) 

Other trading activities April 2016 Filming Recharges to Wormwood Scrubs (188) 

Other trading activities April 2016 Filming Recharges to Wormwood Scrubs (750) 

Other trading activities April 2016 Filming Recharges to Wormwood Scrubs (250) 

Other trading activities May 2016 Filming Recharges to Wormwood Scrubs (758) 

Other trading activities June 2016 Filming Recharges to Wormwood Scrubs (778) 

Other trading activities June 2016 Filming Recharges to Wormwood Scrubs (259) 

Other trading activities June 2016 Filming Recharges to Wormwood Scrubs (778) 

Other trading activities June 2016 Filming Recharges to Wormwood Scrubs (259) 

Other trading activities June 2016 Filming Recharges to Wormwood Scrubs (778) 

Other trading activities June 2016 Filming Recharges to Wormwood Scrubs (259) 

Other trading activities June 2016 Filming Recharges to Wormwood Scrubs (209) 

Other trading activities June 2016 Filming Recharges to Wormwood Scrubs (70) 

Pay and Display Parking Meters April Wormwood Scrubs Income (23,634) 

Pay and Display Parking Meters May Wormwood Scrubs Income (22,536) 

Pay and Display Parking Meters June Wormwood Scrubs Income (26,857) 

Pay and Display Parking Meters July Wormwood Scrubs Income (24,263) 

Pay and Display Parking Meters August Worwood Scrubs Income (23,557) 

Pay and Display Parking Meters SeptemberWorwood Scrubs Income (24,337) 

Pay and Display Parking Meters OctoberWorwood Scrubs Income (21,444) 

Pay and Display Parking Meters November Worwood Scrubs Income (23,021) 

Pay and Display Parking Meters December Worwood Scrubs Income (21,806) 

Other trading activities Event Fees (Police Parking) (6,020) 

Other trading activities Event Fees (Winter Wonderland Parking) (11,840) 

Other trading activities Event Fees (Cancer Research Pretty Muddy Event) (1,820) 

Other trading activities July 2016 Filming Recharges to Wormwood Scrubs (190) 

Other trading activities August 2016 Filming Recharges to Wormwood Scrubs (160) 

Other trading activities 
September 2016 Filming Recharges to Wormwood 
Scrubs (598) 

Other trading activities 
September 2016 Filming Recharges to Wormwood 
Scrubs (6,212) 

Other trading activities September 2016 Filming Recharges to Wormwood (1,035) 

Page 15



 
 

 
 

Scrubs 

Other trading activities 
September 2016 Filming Recharges to Wormwood 
Scrubs (3,106) 

Other trading activities July 2016 Filming Recharges to Wormwood Scrubs (569) 

Other trading activities Event Fees (Police Parking) (3,020) 

Hammersmith Hospital Car Park Licence 2016/17 Q1 Hospital Car Park Rental (78,727) 

Hammersmith Hospital Car Park Licence 2016/17 Q2 Hospital Car Park Rental (78,727) 

Hammersmith Hospital Car Park Licence 2016/17 Q3 Hospital Car Park Rental (78,727) 

Hammersmith Hospital Car Park Licence 2016/17 Q4 Hospital Car Park Rental (80,325) 

Other expenditure Pest Control 46 

Page 16


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the last meeting
	Minutes

	4 Managers Report

